
Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of March 20
th

, 2012 1 

Town of Eliot 
REGULAR PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES March 20th, 2012 7PM 

 
ITEM 1 - ROLL CALL  

Present: Present: Steve Beckert – Chairman, Jeff Duncan – Vice Chairman, 
Dennis Lentz, Larry Bouchard and Greg Whalen - Alternative. 

 
Steve Beckert appointed Greg Whalen as a voting member for this meeting.  
 
ITEM 2 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

ITEM 3 – MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 

ITEM 4 - REVIEW AND APPROVE MINUTES AND INVOICES AS NEEDED 
 
MOTION: 
Jeff Duncan made the motion to approve the minutes of the November 15th, 2011 
Planning Board meeting, as amended. 
Dennis Lentz seconded the motion. 
Vote: 4-0, Chair concurs.  
 
ITEM 5 - REVIEW OF "NOTICE OF DECISION" LETTERS, AS NEEDED 
 
There were no notice of decision letters to review. 
 
ITEM 6 - PUBLIC APPLICATIONS OR PLANNING BOARD BUSINESS TO BE 
CONSIDERED 
 

A. Application for Site Plan Review to establish a flea market at 220 Beech 
Road. Applicant is Richard Donhauser (mailing address: PO Box 256, Eliot, 
ME 03903). Property owner is: Medical Environments, LLC (mailing 
address: 61 H.L. Dow Highway, Eliot, ME 03903). Property can be identified 
as Map 29/Lot 37 and is located in the C/I zoning district. (PB12-2) 

 
Richard Donhauser, applicant, explained that he was seeking approval to 
operate a 90-100 site flea market at the corner of Beech Road and Route 236, 
across from the Eliot Commons. He stated that the flea market would be in 
operation on weekends only and that each vendor would rent a 10’ x 10’ space 
that may be a tent or a table. There will be no buildings onsite and no changes to 
the site are proposed. He stated that there is more than ample parking  area 
available and that access to the site is gained via an existing driveway located 
about 300’ up Beech Road so no traffic would be entering or exiting directly onto 
Route 236.  
 
Greg Whalen stated that the site plan shows a leach field and asked if it was 
existing.  
 
Richard Donhauser stated that the leach field was existing and is currently used 
by Niven Damon who owns the abutting property. He stated that the flea market 
will not be using a septic system and would instead be renting about 4 portable 
outdoor toilets on a month-to-month basis. 
 



Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of March 20
th

, 2012 2 

Greg Whalen asked if the flea market would be year round or seasonal.  
 
Richard Donhauser stated that he expected to operate from May through 
October on Saturdays and Sundays. If it’s successful then he may wish to open 
on Fridays as well. 
 
Jeff Duncan stated that there are some wetlands on the property and asked how 
Mr. Donhauser planned to keep people off of them.  
 
Richard Donhauser stated that the portion of the lot that was wet was a good 
distance away from the vendor area. The most problematic portion of the site 
would be in the center of the jurisdictional wetlands. He stated that he could put 
up a storm fence around the area if the Board requires it or if it becomes a 
problem keeping people out of it.  
 
Larry Bouchard asked what type of material would be used in the parking area. 
 
Richard Donhauser stated that the parking area would remain grass, as it is 
today. He stated that if it rained the flea market would not open so there should 
be no issues with mud or people getting stuck.  
 
Jeff Duncan asked if the tents and tables would stay in place during the week 
while the flea market is closed. 
 
Richard Donhauser stated that all tents and tables would be removed every week 
but that the portable toilets would stay.  
 
Dennis Lentz asked if there would be power supplied to the site. 
 
Richard Donhauser stated that at this time there would be no power onsite.  
 
Greg Whalen asked how the parking requirements were calculated. 
 
Richard Donhauser stated that Tom Harmon of Civil Consultants calculated the 
parking area and that he wasn’t sure what method was used.  
 
The Board asked Kate Pelletier to find out which standards were used to 
calculate the parking requirements.  
 
Dennis Lentz asked if the Planning Board could regulate the types of items sold 
at a flea market.  
 
Kate Pelletier stated that they could not regulate the type of merchandise sold 
and that anything that could be legally sold within the State of Maine could be 
legally sold at the flea market.  
 
Jeff Duncan asked why the Town could regulate things like “firewood sales” or 
“plant nurseries” but not what’s sold at a flea market. 
 
Kate Pelletier stated that “firewood sales” and “plant nurseries” are named 
principal land uses in the table of land uses. The principal land use Mr. 



Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of March 20
th

, 2012 3 

Donhauser is applying for is “retail,” which does not restrict the types of goods 
that can be sold there.  
 
Steve Beckert asked the Board if they wanted to conduct a site walk for this 
application. 
 
The Board agreed by consensus to waive the site walk.  
 
Dennis Lentz asked the applicant to add the location of the proposed sign to the 
site plan. 
 
Richard Donhauser stated that he would do that in time for the next meeting. 
 
MOTION: 
Jeff Duncan made the motion to accept the sketch plan and schedule the public 
hearing for April 17th, 2012. 
Dennis Lentz seconded the motion.  
Vote: 4-0, Chair concurs. 
 
 
ITEM 7 - ACTION ITEM LIST  
 
ITEM 8 – CORRESPONDENCE, OTHER AS NEEDED 
 

 March 8th, 2012 memo to Jim Marchese from Steve Beckert re: chicken coop 
ordinance. 

 
Steve Beckert stated that the Board should have received the memo from Jim 
Marchese requesting that the Planning Board revise the zoning ordinance to 
regulate domesticated chickens.  
 
The Board agreed to take this matter up at their next meeting on April 3rd, 2012. 
 

 

 March 13th, 2012 note from Jack Murphy re: proposed edits to Rev. 8 of the 
transportation amendments approved by the Planning Board on 2/21/12. 

 
Steve Beckert stated that Jack Murphy  had submitted several pages of hand 
written comments on the proposed amendments to the Streets & Sidewalks 
chapter, which were received on March 13th. He stated that most of the 
suggested changes appeared minor in nature but noted that the final draft of this 
ordinance already had a public hearing and had been forwarded to the Board of 
Selectmen for inclusion on a future warrant. He asked how the Board wanted to 
handle this. 
 
The Board agreed by consensus that the suggested revisions were not 
significant enough to justify holding another public hearing and that there wasn’t 
enough time to revise the ordinance and get it back to the Board of Selectmen for 
the upcoming Town meeting.  
 



Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of March 20
th

, 2012 4 

Steve Beckert noted that the ordinance could be amended later if the Board felt it 
was necessary.  

 
Steve Beckert stated that the Board should have received a copy of a memo 
from the Board of Selectmen dated March 12th in which they ask for Planning 
Board’s input on the possibility of video streaming Planning Board meetings, 
which would be streamed on the Town’s website. He stated that he had some 
questions about this issue pertaining to the Planning Board being one of two 
quasi-judicial boards that are required to keep written and recorded minutes in 
perpetuity for court proceedings or things of that nature. He stated that he would 
like to ask if the Board would be required to keep hard copies of video recordings 
and who would be responsible for storing and copying them. He requested the 
Board’s authorization to write a letter to the Board of Selectmen asking these 
questions before the Planning Board take an official position on the matter.  
 
The Board agreed to authorize Steve Beckert to write a letter to the Board of 
Selectmen regarding video streaming.  
 
ITEM 9 - SET AGENDA AND DATE FOR NEXT MEETNG 
 
The next regular Planning Board meeting was scheduled for April 3rd, 2012. 
 
ITEM 10 – ADJOURN 
MOTION: 
Dennis Lentz made the motion to adjourn at 7:52 PM. 
Greg Whalen seconded the motion. 
Vote: 4-0, Chair concurs.  

_____________________________ 
                                                                          Stephen Beckert, Chairman 

 
        Date approved: _______________ 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
______________________________ 
Kate Pelletier, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 


